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	Brief details – for history and further information see * below.

Location: The park is in Lydiard Tregoze about 5 km W of Swindon. Camp 289 Lydiard House was near by.

Before the camp: Part of a country estate. In 1942 the 302nd station hospital for American forces was built in the park

Pow Camp: Wooden ward huts connected by covered walkways and some larger huts used for kitchens, mess huts, stores, a chapel and a mortuary. Medical facilities included operating theatres, x-ray equipment, a laboratory, dental surgery, ‘de-plastering’ room, ear, nose and throat bay, and a psychiatric ward.

It is reported that the camp could hold / treat up to 220 pows. POW’s in hospital could practice various craft and art work, those who were well enough worked at local farms.

August 1944 - The camp was designated as a British pow hospital. “In that month alone 49 major operations and 664 minor operations were conducted, as well as 529 outpatient visits and 676 consultations. German nurses had started to arrive and eighty POW’s who had recovered their health were kept on to assist around the camp, their roles ranging from “trash detail” to stretcher bearers and general site maintenance.”*

October 1944 - Security was increased with barbed wire fences and watch towers.
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	Ordnance Survey 1960



	March 1945 to April 1946 - The German camp leader and senior surgeon was Professor Werner Wachsmuth. He later became professor of surgery at Würzburg University (1946-1969).

1946 – aerial photo; raf_106g_uk_1721_rp_3128 - Aerial Photo | Historic England

February 1948 - 160 POW Hospital Camp Lydiard Park closed.

Known Camp Commandants 
1946 Lt Col Sutton ?
1947 Major T Garvey

Photo by ICRC, 1945. Infirmary for the surgical department >

After the camp: The site was bought when it was still a pow camp in 1943 by Swindon Council. When the camp closed it was used for emergency housing up to the late 1950’s. 2019 Country Park.
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Further Information:

* Information from The Lydiard Archives, excellent website with history, resources, documents, pictures  – 
https://www.thelydiardarchives.org.uk/collection/lydiard-park-prisoner-of-war-hospital-camp

The site includes two registers recording the deaths that occurred at the hospital.

There is also a list of 180 pows at No 160 Lydiard Park POW Camp, taken on the evening of 30th September 1947.

The Wiltshire and Swindon History Centre have various documents about the acquisition and development of the camp.
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